
I

Heritage Open Days
The Dover Society  - Press R elease

1953 Coronation Display as Part of Heritage Open Days in Dover 
Saturday and Sunday 13th and 14th September 2014

----------------------------------------------------D erek L e a c h -----------------------------------------------------

Once again The Dover Society is 
coordinating arrangem ents in Dover 

for Heritage O pen Days, organised by  
English Heritage nationally every year. 
This event celebrates England's fantastic 
architectural heritage by encouraging free 
access to buildings that are usually closed 
to the public or would norm ally charge an 
adm ission fee. Dover has a great w ealth of 
historic buildings, b u t few are norm ally 
open to the public such as Dover Castle 
and are not free. This year 9 buildings will 
be open to the public free of charge.

As the country celebrates 60 years since 
Q ueen E lizabeth 's coronation, Dover 
Tbwn Council will include a display at 
Maison Dieu House of Dover's traditional 
part as a Cinque Port in the historic 
coronation cerem ony.

1 D over Town H all, form erly  the  
M aison Dieu: Founded by H ubert de 
Burgh, then  Constable of Dover Castle, in 
1203, the prim ary purpose of the Maison 
D ieu was to provide free board  and 
lodging for pilgrims on their way to the 
shrine of Thom as a Becket at Canterbury 
and la ter to care for the elderly poor and 
sick of Dover. A chapel added by H enry 
III, was adapted in the 19th century  as a 
court. More buildings were added over the 
centuries. In 1536 the religious house was 
suppressed by H enry VIII, becom ing the 
King's property. The buildings becam e a 
victualling depot for the navy until 1830 
w hen it was taken over by  the Board of 
Ordnance. Put up for auction in 1834 it

was bought by  the Dover Corporation. 
Restoration and adaptation of the Stone 
Hall and chapel took place betw een 1852 
and 1862. The 19th century  stained glass 
windows in the Stone Hall depict episodes 
in the history of the town and there are a 
num ber of portraits of famous people 
connected w ith the town. The Council 
C ham ber was added in 1868 and the 
adjoining Connaught Hall was opened in 
1883.

2 M aison D ieu  H ouse: th is fine 
Jacobean house in Biggin Street is the 
oldest domestic building in Dover. It was 
built in 1665 as the Agent Victualler's 
residence close to the Maison Dieu, which 
H enry VIII had requisitioned as a store for 
the Navy Victualling Office following the 
D issolution. In  1834 it becam e the  
residence of the com m ander of the Royal 
Engineers in Dover before becom ing a 
private residence. The Kingsford brew ing 
and milling family and the M um m ery 
family who owned the Stembrook tannery  
lived here  during  the 19th cen tury . 
Bought by the Corporation in 1899, the 
house becam e council offices until after 
the Second World War w hen it becam e the 
public library. Following the move of the 
lib rary  to the D iscovery Centre, the 
prem ises were purchased and beautifully 
restored by Dover Tbwn Council for its 
use. The town's regalia will also be on 
show.

3 St. Edm und's Chapel: th is tin y  
cem etery  chapel in  Priory Road was
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consecrated by  St Richard of C hichester in 
1253 in  m em ory of his friend, St. Edmund, 
Archbishop of C anterbury 1234-45, and 
was probably used as a cem etery  chapel 
for the M aison Dieu close by. H idden for 
m any years by  developm ent around it and 
used as a workshop, it was revealed again 
following w ar dam age to the surrounding 
buildings. The chapel was restored and 
reconsecrated in 1968.

4 Dover College, the rem ains o f  St. 
M artin's Priory: b u ilt in  the  12th 
century, it was suppressed in  1535 as part 
of H en ry  VIII's D issolution  of the 
M onasteries. The site was then  leased for 
farm ing and m ost of the buildings fell into 
disrepair. Fortunately, the grand N orm an 
refectory was used as a barn  and survives 
today. Dover College opened on the site in 
1871 w hen  the refectory and gatehouse 
were restored and the king's hall becam e 
the college chapel. Part of the cloister also 
survives. The en trance is from Effingham 
Crescent.

5 Church o f  St. Mary the Virgin: this 
p ro m in e n t bu ild ing  in  Biggin Street, 
dating  from  Saxon tim es, was b u ilt 
originally by  the secular canons of St. 
M artin Le Grand, bu t was rebuilt by  the 
Normans. At the Dissolution it was saved 
from dem olition w hen H enry VIII granted 
it for use as a parish  and civic church. 
U nfortunately , because  of its w eak 
foundations, it was rebu ilt in  1843, 
although its original arches and colum ns 
were reinstated. The m agnificent tower 
survived this restoration.

6 B ell Tbwer o f  St. Mary the Virgin: in
the gallery of this N orm an tow er visitors 
will see how  the bellringers operate and in 
the clock cham ber they  will see the clock 
workings and various artefacts.

7 U n itarian  Church: th is brick-built

octagonal church sitting above York Street 
was constructed in 1820 and its worship 
area reflects the shape of the building. 
The origins of the church go back to 1643 
to a local com m unity  of Baptists who 
established a m eeting house in 1655 bu t 
were persecuted  following the restoration 
of the m onarchy in 1660. In 1692 Samuel 
Taverner m ade part of his house available 
for worship and part of the garden as a 
burial ground. Freedom  of belief and form 
of worship as a U nitarian Church was 
agreed by m em bers in 1916. Following 
Second World War damage, the chapel 
reopened in  1952. There will be an art 
exhibition and Pity of War display as well 
as refreshm ents.

8 Grand Shaft Staircase: this unique 
triple staircase was started in 1804 and 
finished in 1807. It connected the barracks 
and fortifications on the W estern Heights 
through the 250 foot high cliff to sea level, 
Snargate S treet and the P ier District, 
enabling troops to move quickly up or 
down its 140 steps w ithin the cliff plus 
another 59 into the barrack yard. In 1812 
a Mr Leith of Walmer rode a horse up the 
staircase for a bet. The entrance is in 
Snargate Street.

9 St. R adigund's A bbey: th is
P rem onstratensian  abbey founded in 1191 
w as v isited  by  several m onarchs. 
Following its D issolution in 1538, the 
great abbey church was dem olished and 
the rem aining buildings w ith its lands 
w ere leased to ten an t farm ers by the 
m onarch . Today the  refec to ry  is the 
farm house surrounded by abbey ruins. A 
gatehouse and a guest house survive.

O pening tim es w ill be:
1 Town Hall - Guided tours on Saturday 
only from  10am to 4pm
2 Maison Dieu House - Saturday 10am to 
4pm
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3 St. Edm und's Chapel - Saturday 10am to 
4pm
4 Dover College - Guided tours only at 
11am and 2pm  on Saturday and Sunday
5 St. Mary the Virgin Church - Saturday 
10am to 4pm
6 Bell Tbwer of St. Mary the Virgin - 
Saturday 1.30pm to 4pm
7 U nitarian Church - Saturday and Sunday 
10am to 4pm
8 Grand Shaft Staircase - Saturday and 
Sunday 10am to 4pm
9 St. Radigund's Abbey - Guided tours on 
Sunday 10.30 to noon and 2.30pm to 4pm

P u b lic ity  leaflets
Publicity leaflets are available from  the 
Visitor Inform ation Centre (now located 
in  Dover M useum), Dover Tbwn Council 
Offices (Maison Dieu House), Dover Tbwn 
Hall and Dover Library.

Tb find out about other buildings open in 
the region call 020 7539 7921 or visit 
w w w.heritageopendays.org

Local contact for m ore inform ation: Derek 
Leach on 01304 823926 or em ail
derekriverdale@ btinternet.com

COWGATE CEMETERY Barry Late

H aving su rv ived  th e  w et w inter, 
Cowgate C em etery  th is spring has 

responded w ith a beautifu l display of 
prim roses and everyw here the re  are the 
signs of a good recovery and a prom ising 
sum m er to come. Work continues at a 
good pace w ith grass cu tting  and general 
m ain tenance at th is early  stage of the 
year, well advanced.

Now m ight be a good tim e to dispel the

im p ressio n  m an y  casual v isito rs to 
Cowgate often experience and tha t is tha t 
our vo lun teer team  is no th ing  m ore than  
an  al fresco d ining and debating society. 
This is m ain ly  due to our regular m id 
m orn ing  com fort b reak  w hich always 
involves consum ing copious quantities of 
fresh  g round  coffee and  feasting  on 
e ith e r  chocolate d igestive b iscu its  or 
D eborah 's very  h ea lthy  and  delicious 
banana  cake.

If you would like to com e and jo in us, and experience for yourself some of the m any
al fresco club benefits, sessions are from  9 am  to noon on the following future dates:-

M onth Thursdays Saturdays
July 03 J u l 14 12 J u l 14
August 07 Aug 14 16 Aug 14
Septem ber 04 Sep 14 27 Sep 14
October 02 Oct 14 11 Oct 14
November 06 Nov 14 15 Nov 14
D ecem ber 04 Dec 14 13 Dec 14

For more information please contact either:
Barry Late: 01304 826286 Email: barry@late697.plus.com 

or Jeremy Cope: 01304 211348 Email: Jeremycope@willersley.plus.com
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